ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 8, 2010
1:01 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Al bert Kookesh, Chair
Senator Linda Menard, Vice Chair
Senator Bettye Davis

Senat or Kevin Meyer

Senat or Joe Paskvan

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO 152
"An Act relating to nunicipal transportation systens and to
regional transit authorities.”

- MOVED CSSB 152( TRA) QUT OF COW TTEE

COW TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 366(JUD)
"An Act relating to indemification agreenents that relate to
notor carrier transportation contracts."”

- MOVED CSHB 366(JUD) OUT OF COMM TTEE

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 47

Urging the United States Coast CGuard to anend its regul ations
relating to small vessels transporting fuel and supplies to
renmote conmunities and businesses in the state.

- MOVED HIR 47 QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 152

SHORT TITLE: TRANSPORTATI ON: TRANSI T AUTHORI Tl ES
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) HUGG NS

03/ 18/ 09 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 18/ 09 (S) TRA, FIN
03/ 18/ 10 (S) TRA AT 1: 00 PM BUTROVI CH 205

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -1- April 8, 2010



03/ 18/ 10 (S) Heard & Hel d
03/ 18/ 10 (S) M NUTE( TRA)
04/ 08/ 10 (S) TRA AT 1: 00 PM BUTROVI CH 205

Bl LL: HB 366
SHORT TI TLE: MOTOR CARRI ER | NDEMNI FI CATI ON AGREEMENTS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) JOHNSON

02/ 23/ 10 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

02/ 23/ 10 (H TRA, JUD

03/ 11/ 10 (H) TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 11/ 10 (H Moved CSHB 366( TRA) Qut of Committee

03/ 11/ 10 (H M NUTE( TRA)

03/ 12/ 10 (H) TRA RPT CS(TRA) 5DP 1NR

03/ 12/ 10 (H DP: JOHNSOQN, T. W LSON, GRUENBERG,
PETERSEN, P. W LSON

03/ 12/ 10 (H NR:  JOHANSEN

03/ 19/ 10 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

03/19/10 (H Moved CSHB 366(JUD) Qut of Conmittee

03/ 19/ 10 (H M NUTE (JUD)

03/ 22/ 10 (H JUD RPT CS(JUD) 7DP

03/ 22/ 10 (H DP: LYNN, GRUENBERG, HERRON, DAHLSTROM
HOLMES, GATTO, RAMRAS

03/ 26/ 10 (H TRANSM TTED TO (S)

03/ 26/ 10 (H VERSI ON:  CSHB 366( JUD)

03/ 29/ 10 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

03/ 29/ 10 (S) TRA

04/ 08/ 10 (S) TRA AT 1: 00 PM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: HIR 47
SHORT TITLE: SMALL VESSEL CARGO EXEMPTI ON
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) JOHANSEN

02/ 23/ 10 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

02/ 23/ 10 (H TRA

03/ 23/ 10 (H) TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 23/ 10 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

03/ 23/ 10 (H M NUTE ( TRA)

03/ 24/ 10 (H) TRA RPT 5DP 1AM

03/ 24/ 10 (H DP: JOHANSEN, MUNQZ, T. W LSON,
GRUENBERG, PETERSEN

03/ 24/ 10 (H) AM P. W LSON

04/ 01/ 10 (H TRANSM TTED TO (S)

04/ 01/ 10 (H) VERSI ON:  HIR 47

04/ 02/ 10 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

04/ 02/ 10 (S) TRA

04/ 08/ 10 (S) TRA AT 1: 00 PM BUTROVI CH 205

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 2- April 8, 2010



W TNESS REG STER

JODI E SI VSON

Staff to Senator Charlie Huggins

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information on SB 125 on behal f of
t he sponsor.

JEFFERY C. OITESEN, Director

Di vi sion of Program Devel opnent

Department of Transportation and Public Facilities

Juneau, AK ( DOTPF)

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified that DOTPS should be part of the
process to forman RTA.

BRAD SWORTS, Transportation and Envi ronnental Manager

Mat - Su Bor ough

Pal mer, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of creating regional
transit authorities.

JODY KARCZ, Public Transportation Director

Muni ci pality of Anchorage (MA)

Anchor age, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded supporting information related to
devel opi ng an RTA

RALPH DUERRE, Assi stant Attorney

Muni ci pality of Anchorage (MA)

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified that MOA supports the conceptual
amendnent that Senator Paskvan proposed related to SB 152.

JEANNE OSTNES

Staff to Representative Craig Johnson

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 366 on behal f of the sponsor.

AVES THOWPSON, Executive Director

Al aska Trucki ng Associ ation (ATA)

Anchor age, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 366.

DEAN MCKENZI E, Presi dent

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 3- April 8, 2010



Al aska West Express
Anchor age, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 366.

JAMES C. DOYLE, Vice President

Weaver Brothers Trucking

Anchor age, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 366.

REPRESENTATI VE KYLE JOHANSEN

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of HIR 47.

DAVE SPOKELY

Power Systens and Supplies of Al aska (PSSA)

Ket chi kan, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 47.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1: 01: 10 PM

CHAI R ALBERT KOOKESH called the Senate Transportation Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:01 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Menard, Davis, Meyer, Paskvan, and Kookesh.

SB 152- TRANSPORTATI ON;  TRANSI T AUTHORI Tl ES

1: 01: 39 PM
SENATOR KOOKESH announced the consideration of SB 152. The bill
was heard previously.

JODIE SIMSQN, Staff to Senator Charlie Huggins, inforned the
commttee that a representative from the Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities (DOTPF) was present and
representatives fromthe Minicipality of Anchorage and the Mat Su
Bor ough were online to respond to questions and concerns.

1:02: 35 PM

JEFFERY C. OITESEN, Director, D vision of Program Devel opnent,
Department of Transportation and Public Facilities (DOTPF),
stated that the fundanmental reason that DOTPF has not taken a
position on the legislation is that the bill doesn't identify a
role for DOTPF in either the formative stages or the operations
of a regional transit authority (RTA).

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -4- April 8, 2010



MR. OITESEN said DOTPF believes that it should be involved in
any future RTA, and that there is also a need for netropolitan
pl anning organizations (MPO - the planning authority for
transportation funding from the federal gover nment . Any
community with a population of 50,000 that neets a certain
density standard becones an MPO, he said. There are two in the
state - the Anchorage Metropolitan Area Transportation System
(AVATS) and the Fairbanks Metropolitan Area Transportation
System (FMATS). It's likely that Mat-Su will becone one after
t he 2010 census is cal cul ated, he added.

MR. OTTESEN informed the commttee that RTAs often span nultiple
| ocal governnent boundaries. An RTA is likely to be partly
within an MPO and partly outside and thus dealing wth the state
for funding decisions. He explained that RTAs nay include rai
and light rail transit and alnost certainly rubber-tire transit.
Even when the primary goal is to build a rail-based system
rubber-tire transit 1is necessary to bring people in from
outlying areas to the rail system There's a great deal of
overlap and DOTPF needs to be included in operational agreenents
with respect to operating on rights-of-way, building bus stops,
buil ding park-and-rides, and signal preenption to give buses
priority. He noted that buses already get priority at traffic
lights in Anchorage.

He described Sound Transit in Seattle as one of the newer and
nore innovative RTAs in the nation. It is doing comuter rail
light rail, and has several rubber-tire transit routes. The
Washi ngton state transportation departnent saw an obvi ous need
to be a part of that RTA and it has a conm ssioner-I|level voting
menber on that transit board.

1: 06: 33 PM

MR. OITESEN explained to the commttee that if an RTA were to
straddle a borough and the wunorganized borough, DOTPF' s role
m ght be wuseful because the unorganized borough has no | ocal
government at the borough level. In that case, the Legislature
woul d act as the borough assenbly and the state would act as the
| ocal governnment. He cited a potential RTA in Fairbanks wth
routes to Delta Junction or Nenana as an exanple. These are the
reasons for the need for both MPGOs and DOIs to have a role in
RTAs, he said. Wether it's permssive or mandatory is up to the
Legislature, but it ought to at |east be all owed.

SENATOR KOOKESH observed that that isn't part of this bill.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 5- April 8, 2010



MR. OITESEN agreed the bill is silent on that point, which in
the future would | ead to a question about the intent.

CHAI R KOOKESH asked DOTPF' s position on the bill as currently
witten.

MR. OITESEN replied DOTPF believes that RTAs are necessary and
appropriate in Al aska.

CHAI R KOOKESH asked if DOTPF believes that this is a first step.

MR. OITESEN said yes and it would be better if the role of MPGCs
and DOTPF were clarified in the formation of the RTA

1: 08: 48 PM
SENATOR DAVI S asked if he brought an anmendnent or |anguage to
clarify the role of DOTPF.

MR. OTTESEN offered to provide |anguage. Responding to a further
question, he said he prefers to have the intent clear from the
out set.

SENATOR MENARD asked if he is suggesting that someone from DOTPF
shoul d be on the RTA board.

MR. OITESEN replied it's probably appropriate for each DOIPF
regional director to be in that role.

SENATOR MENARD asked himto clarify the priority issue.

MR. OITESEN explained that bus prioritization works nuch the
sanme as it does for energency vehicles. Priority is always given
to the enmergency vehicle at intersections while priority is
given to a bus if it is full. If the bus is enpty, it would not
receive priority.

1:11: 47 PM
SENATOR MENARD nentioned the stimulus noney and said she
supports the bill.

MR. OTTESEN said there will be additional noney and nost of it wll
run through the MPO or state DOI. That's why RTAs want those
representatives on their board, he said. At the federal I|evel MGs
are the planning authority. The best exanple in Al aska is AMATS and
the Knik Arm Bridge and Toll Authority (KABATA) Board, he said. He
rel ated that KABATA was established by the Legislature, yet the AVATS
MPO is driving whether or not that project proceeds. Recently there

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 6- April 8, 2010



was a vote to potentially shut that project down for a decade and
al though that didn't happen, the nessage is that MPOs and other
regi onal transportation organi zations need to col |l aborate.

1:14: 12 PM
SENATOR PASKVAN asked if he is saying that the bill is a first
step, but that DOTPF needs to be involved at sone point in tine.

MR. OITESEN replied it's appropriate because of the way the
federal funding works and it would increase the likelihood of a
successful RTA

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if a conceptual anendnent would be
appropriate that says, "A regional transit authority created in
this section may participate with a RTA created by this act."

MR. OTTESEN agreed that perm ssive |anguage woul d be fine. DOTPF
controls the funding strings to a degree so there is inpetus for
having it at the table.

MR. OITESEN suggested the anendnment |anguage also include "a
representative from any coincident nmetropolitan planning
organi zation." He noted that the draft transportation bill in
Congress sends noney directly to the MPGs so it would no | onger
run through the state DOT or be appropriated by the Legislature.

1:17: 03 PM
BRAD SWORTS, Transportation and Environnmental WMnager, Mat-Su
Bor ough, st at ed support for creating regi onal transit

authorities. He related that WMt-Su Borough has been working
closely wth the Mmnicipality of Anchorage on the matter. He
related that transit operations within the borough and between
the borough and Anchorage continue to increase. It's
increasingly clear that the nmanagenent and coordination of
improved transit operations should be carried out through an
RTA, he said. Mnicipalities and conmunities in Al aska would
benefit from passage of SB 152.

JODY KARCZ, Public Transportation Director, Minicipality of
Anchorage (MJA), pointed out that when the WMat-Su Borough and
the MOA began talking about the process to establish an RTA,
DOTPF was brought to the table and it continues to be a strong
pl ayer.

Referring to the "Opticont transit priority bus project that M.

Otesen nentioned, she explained that the nmunicipal assenbly
approved a one-year pilot programfor two bus routes. Just 20 of

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -7- April 8, 2010



the 217 traffic signals within Anchorage are equi pped to accept
bus priority during peak hours in peak directions, she said. So
far there has been m ninmal inpact on cross streets.

1:21: 32 PM
SENATOR PASKVAN asked if she would have any problem with the
concept ual anmendnent to i ncl ude DOTPF and coi nci dent

nmetropolitan planning organizations in the RTA created by the
Act .

M5. KARCZ replied it's a good amendnent.

SENATOR MENARD said she would like the |language to say "shall™
instead of "may" to ensure that DOTPF is included.

CHAI R KOOKESH cl arified that this is a conceptual anendment.

SENATOR PASKVAN said he has no problem with that if DOTPF
agr ees.

1:22:52 PM

RALPH DUERRE, Assistant Attorney, Minicipality of Anchorage
(M), said MOA supports the conceptual anendnent that Senator
Paskvan proposed. He related that SB 152 is flexible to allow a
variety of transportation plans. There is no question that DOTPF
and MPCs will play vital role in the success of the RTA and
their participation is nobst welcome. However, DOTPF and MPO
participation should be on a perm ssive basis.

SENATOR KOCKESH cl osed public testinony.
1:25: 46 PM
SENATOR PASKVAN noved conceptual Anmendnment 1 to add a new
section (b)(3) to read as foll ows:
The Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities
may participate and/or a representative of a
coincident nmetropolitan planning organization may
participate with a regional transit authority created
by this Act.

SENATOR MENARD objected to the word "may" because it is too
perm ssi ve.

CHAI R KOOKESH asked M. Otesen to provide his perspective.

MR. OITESEN stated a preference for the perm ssive | anguage.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 8- April 8, 2010



SENATOR KOOKESH agreed with that position.

1:28:01 PM
SENATOR MENARD renoved her objection.

CHAIR KOOKESH found no further objection and announced that
conceptual Amendnment 1 was adopted. He asked the wll of the
comm ttee.

1:28:28 PM

SENATOR PASKVAN noved to report SB 152, as conceptual |y anended,
from conmttee wth individual recomendations and attached
fiscal note(s). There being no objection, CSSB 152(TRA) noved
fromthe Senate Transportation Standing Comrttee.

At ease from1l:29 p.m to 1:30 p.m

HB 366- MOTOR CARRI ER | NDEMNI FI CATI ON AGREEMENTS

SENATOR KOOKESH announced consideration of HB 366. [CSHB
366(JUD) was before the committee.]

1: 30: 54 PM
JEANNE OSTNES, Staff to Representative Craig Johnson, said HB
366 places a provision in statute to clarify that both shippers
and notor carriers are responsible for their own negligence or
om Ssi ons.

1:32: 03 PM

AVES THOWSON, Executive Director, Alaska Trucking Association
(ATA), stated support for HB 366. He related that one priority
of ATA this year is to achieve tort reform with regard to
indemmification agreenents in notor carrier transportation
contracts. Mdtor carriers nust conply with the federal notor
carrier safety regulations when transporting goods as well as
cormon |aw or statutory duties or responsibilities. Likew se,

shi ppers and ot her parties have | egal duties and
responsibilities to fulfill when provi di ng goods for
transportation. However, it's becom ng nore conmon for shippers

to include language in notor carrier contracts requiring the
nmotor carrier to indemify and hold harm ess the shipper even
when the shipper fails to neet its legal duties and
responsi bilities.

The CS for HB 366 provides statutory |anguage that voids
contractual provisions in a notor carrier transportation

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 9- April 8, 2010



contract that indemifies either the shipper or the notor
carrier for their own negligent or intentional acts or om ssions
that lead to clains. This levels the playing field and makes
everyone responsible for their own actions wthout establishing
new duties or responsibilities. The bill doesn't |imt the
freedom to contract and each party can control its enployees or
agents to inprove unsafe practices. Industry groups that support
the legislation include BP, ConocoPhillips, Association of
CGeneral Contractors, Alaska Mners Association, Alaska State
Chanber of Conmmerce, and the Ccean Carriers Equi pment Managenent
Associ ation. He noted that twelve states have simlar laws and
ei ght states have | egi sl ation pending.

1:35:28 PM

SENATOR PASKVAN stated that HB 366 advances good social policy
and will pronote safety; each person should be responsible for
his or her own conduct. To allow private parties to say that
sonmeone else will pay for their omssions or negligence is a
troubl i ng concept, he said.

SENATOR MENARD sai d she inmagi nes he has heard the input fromthe
Al aska | nsurance Conpany about shifting responsibility.

MR. THOWPSON said he isn't aware of that.

M5. OSTNES said Linda Hall, the division director for insurance,
| ooked at the bill and had no problemwth it. M. Ostnes added
that the intent of the legislation is not to void a whole
contract, just the portion dealing with om ssions or neglect.

1:37:35 PM

DEAN MCKENZI E, President, Alaska Wst Express (AW), stated
support for HB 366. He noted that he submtted a letter to the
sponsor citing an unresolved issue with a conpany that does
drilling work in Alaska, nationally, and internationally.
Currently AW is working with two nore conpanies that have
simlarly |opsided |language in their naster service agreenents,
which takes a lot of tinme. Smaller contractors or carriers may
not have the ability to devote this nuch tine, he said. As
others have stated, we should all be responsible for our own
actions; we should not be forced to take responsibility for the
actions of others over whom we have no control, he said.

1:39: 00 PM

JAMES C. DOYLE, Vice President, Waver Brothers Trucking, stated
support for HB 366. He cited an exanple of a situation that this
| egislation would prevent. Four or five days after a trucking

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -10- April 8, 2010



conpany delivered fuel to a gas station, a customer was burned

while filling a portable gas tank because of an arc. The
trucki ng conpany had to pay the claimeven though it had nothing
to do with the actual incident because it had signed an

agreenent indemifying the gas station from any type of |oss. HB
366 would correct this type of wong, he said.

1:40: 39 PM
SENATOR KOOKESH cl osed public testinony and asked the wll of
the conm tt ee.

SENATOR PASKVAN noved to report CS for HB 366 from conmittee
with individual recomendations and attached fiscal note(s).
There being no objection, CSHB 366(JUD) noved from the Senate
Transportation Standing Comrttee.

At ease from1l:41 p.m to 1:42 p. m

HIR 47- SMALL VESSEL CARGO EXEMPTI ON

SENATOR KOOKESH announced t he considerati on of HIR 47.

1:42: 46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KYLE JOHANSEN, sponsor of HIR 47, said the
resolution asks the U S. Coast Guard to anend regulations to
allow small vessels to transport concurrently fuel, cargo, and
passengers. He related that constituents of his are trying to
fill a niche market to deliver supplies to renpte conmunities
along the coast that are too large for a plane but too small to
warrant delivery by barge. He explained that a father and son
partnership designed and received certification to build and
operate one vessel. They are not able to build a second vessel
w thout a change in Coast Cuard regul ations, which has not been
forthcom ng.

HIR 47 asks the Coast Guard to consider the uni que
transportation chal | enges in Al aska and ot her coast al
communi ties nationw de and change the regul ati ons.

SENATOR MENARD stated support for the resolution and asked how
much fuel oil the vessel carries.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN said he has soneone online who can
provi de details.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -11- April 8, 2010



SENATOR MEYER asked if the vessel was built in the Ketchikan
shi pyar d.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN said no; he isn't sure where it was
built, but this class of vessel would certainly interest the
shi pyards in Ketchi kan, Sitka and others in Al aska.

1:47:10 PM

DAVE SPOKELY, Power Systens and Supplies of Al aska (PSSA), said
that with the change in the tinber industry there was a need for
smaller vessels to deliver fuel and supplies to small renote
communities. He and his partner designed the high-speed, 44-foot
al umi num landing craft in conjunction with the Coast Guard and
the Al aska Departnment of Environnental Conservation (DEC). It
carries 3000 gallons of fuel and is a spill-response vessel. It
was built in the Seattle area, but he owns the design and is
prepared to build the vessels in Al aska.

SENATOR MENARD asked if Honeland Security has any issue wth
this type of vessel.

MR. SPCKELY said yes. Honeland Security didn't initially take
i ssue, but their attorneys said the current regul ations woul dn't
allow alumnum vessels to comrercially carry bulk fuel
regardl ess of the quantity. Coast Guard Station Juneau started
the process to wite the regulations, but Honeland Security
woul dn't authorize funding for devel opnent of the regul ations.
Wt hout new regulations he is unable to expand his fleet.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN added that his office has been working
wi th Al aska's congressional delegation and all three nenbers are
supporti ve.

1:51:46 PM
SENATOR MENARD asked if it is safe to say that new regul ations
in this regard could pronote up to 100 j obs.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN replied he isn't sure how many |obs
m ght result, but he understands that M. Spokely has been
overwhel med with requests for the vessel's services. He added
that he and other Southeast legislators are trying to create a
marine center in southern Southeast Al aska.

SENATOR KOOKESH cl osed public testinony and asked the w Il of
the commtt ee.

1:53:15 PM

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -12- April 8, 2010



SENATOR PASKVAN noved to report HIR 47 from conmittee wth
i ndi vi dual recomrendations and attached fiscal note(s). There
being no objection, HIR 47 noved from the Senate Transportation
St andi ng Comm ttee.

1: 53: 43 PM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Chair Kookesh adjourned the neeting at 1:53 p. m

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -13- April 8, 2010



